



SENATE BILL No. 417

March 21, 1995, Introduced by Senators STEIL, HOFFMAN, VAN REGENMORTER, CARL, SHUGARS, GAST, DEGROW, ROGERS, STILLE, EMMONS, MCMANUS, NORTH and DUNASKISS and referred to the Committee on Government Operations.

A bill to amend the title and sections 1, 2, 4, 19, 20, 30, and 37 of Act No. 44 of the Public Acts of 1899, entitled as amended

"An act to provide for the publication and distribution of laws and documents, reports of the several officers, boards of officers and public institutions of this state now or hereafter to be published; to provide for the replacing of books lost by fire or otherwise; to provide for the publication and distribution of the Michigan manual; and to establish certain funds,"

sections 1, 2, and 37 as amended by Act No. 97 of the Public Acts of 1983 and section 30 as amended by Act No. 185 of the Public Acts of 1988, being sections 24.1, 24.2, 24.4, 24.19, 24.20, 24.30, and 24.37 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN ENACT:

1 Section 1. The title and sections 1, 2, 4, 19, 20, 30, and
2 37 of Act No. 44 of the Public Acts of 1899, sections 1, 2, and
3 37 as amended by Act No. 97 of the Public Acts of 1983 and

1 section 30 as amended by Act No. 185 of the Public Acts of 1988,
2 being sections 24.1, 24.2, 24.4, 24.19, 24.20, 24.30, and 24.37
3 of the Michigan Compiled Laws, are amended to read as follows:

4 TITLE

5 An act to provide for the publication and distribution of
6 PUBLICATIONS, laws, and documents, reports of the several offi-
7 cers, boards of officers and public institutions of this state
8 now or hereafter to be published; to provide for the replacing of
9 ~~books~~ PUBLICATIONS lost by fire or otherwise; to provide for
10 the publication and distribution of the Michigan manual; ~~and~~ TO
11 PROVIDE FOR DUTIES OF CERTAIN STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT DEPART-
12 MENTS AND AGENCIES; to establish certain funds; AND TO PROVIDE
13 FOR CERTAIN PENALTIES AND REMEDIES.

14 Sec. 1. (1) The legislative service bureau, under the
15 direction of the legislative council, shall, as soon as practica-
16 ble after the close of any session of the legislature, carefully
17 examine, classify, assign compilation numbers to, catchline, and
18 index the acts passed and prepare them for publication by the
19 legislative service bureau. ~~in a single bound volume which~~ THE
20 PUBLICATION shall include the following:

- 21 (a) A title, ~~page,~~ preface, and table of contents.
- 22 (b) All acts of a general character which affect the people
23 of the whole state.
- 24 (c) All joint resolutions.
- 25 (d) All amendments to the state constitution of 1963 adopted
26 after the publication of the acts of the last preceding session
27 of the legislature.

1 (e) All acts of a local or municipal character which do not
2 affect the people of the whole state.

3 (f) All initiated laws.

4 (g) All veto messages of the governor.

5 (h) All executive orders by which the governor makes changes
6 in the organization of the executive branch or in the assignment
7 of functions among its units which require the force of law.

8 (i) Abstracts of proceedings of boards of supervisors orga-
9 nizing new townships, consolidating townships, or changing the
10 boundaries of townships, received and filed in the office of the
11 secretary of state after the publication of the acts of the pre-
12 vious session of the legislature.

13 (j) Abstracts of proceedings relative to incorporation and
14 change of boundaries of cities and villages filed in the office
15 of the secretary of state after the publication of the acts of
16 the previous session of the legislature.

17 (k) Abstracts of proceedings relative to the incorporation
18 of charter townships filed in the office of the secretary of
19 state after the publication of the acts of the previous session
20 of the legislature.

21 (l) A certificate of the secretary of state setting forth
22 the date of the final adjournment of the legislative session at
23 which the acts published were enacted, and setting forth in the
24 same certificate the date upon which all such acts, not given
25 immediate effect or carrying an effective date, shall take effect
26 according to the state constitution of 1963.

1 (m) That part of the annual report of the state treasurer
 2 for the latest completed fiscal year as shall give an accurate
 3 account of the receipts and expenditures of public money.

4 (n) The Michigan compiled laws table.

5 (o) An index.

6 (2) The legislative service bureau, under the direction of
 7 the legislative council, shall include each final ADOPTED appor-
 8 tionment and districting plan ~~adopted in the single bound volume~~
 9 ~~of~~ WITH the public and local acts of the first regular session
 10 following the date on which the plan becomes law.

11 (3) The items described in subsections (1) and (2) shall be
 12 published ~~in + volume,~~ with the following TITLE text: ~~embossed~~
 13 ~~on the spine of the volume in high quality imitation gold stamp~~
 14 ~~ing foil.~~

15 "PUBLIC AND LOCAL ACTS

16 MICHIGAN

17 SESSION OF....."

18 (YEAR)

19 (4) The public and local acts shall be sequentially arranged
 20 by act number, with ~~boldface~~ BOLDFACED compilation numbers and
 21 catchlines of a style similar to compilation numbers and catch-
 22 lines in the Michigan Compiled Laws. The senate or house of rep-
 23 resentatives bill number of each public or local act ~~appearing~~
 24 ~~in the volume~~ shall appear in parentheses in ~~boldface~~

1 BOLDFACED type immediately below the act number. In cases where
2 a section appearing in the last preceding compilation of the gen-
3 eral laws has been amended, the catchline of that section shall
4 contain the compilation number given to that section in the com-
5 pilation and that number shall be ~~printed~~ in ~~boldface~~
6 BOLDFACED type. The corresponding citation to the Michigan stat-
7 utes annotated shall be placed in brackets in boldface immedi-
8 ately following and as part of the catchline to each section.
9 ~~The style of printing, size, style and arrangement of type, and~~
10 ~~the size of the page for the volumes shall be similar to that of~~
11 ~~the last preceding compilation of the general laws.~~ Cardinal
12 numerals shall be printed in figures and not written out, except
13 when a sentence begins with a cardinal numeral.

14 (5) AS USED IN THIS SECTION, "PUBLICATION" OR "PUBLISHED"
15 MEANS THE PRODUCTION AND DISSEMINATION OF INFORMATION IN PRINT,
16 MICROFILM, MICROFICHE, OR ELECTRONIC FORM.

17 Sec. 2. ~~(1) Upon written request to the legislative serv-~~
18 ~~ice bureau, the department of management and budget shall dis-~~
19 ~~tribute, without charge, 1 volume containing the public and local~~
20 ~~acts of each session of the legislature to each of the~~
21 ~~following:~~

22 ~~(a) Libraries of all state officers, departments, boards,~~
23 ~~commissions, and institutions.~~

24 ~~(b) Senators and representatives of this state in congress.~~

25 ~~(c) The library of congress.~~

26 ~~(d) The United States supreme court and judges and clerks of~~
27 ~~circuit and district courts of the United States in this state.~~

1 ~~(e) Justices, clerks, and the reporter of the state supreme~~
2 ~~court.~~

3 ~~(f) Judges of the court of appeals, circuit, recorder's,~~
4 ~~district, and municipal courts of this state.~~

5 ~~(g) All public libraries, as defined in section 1 of Act~~
6 ~~No. 59 of the Public Acts of 1964, being section 397.31 of the~~
7 ~~Michigan Compiled Laws, and all county law libraries.~~

8 (1) ~~(2) The~~ UNLESS DIRECTED OTHERWISE BY THE LEGISLATIVE
9 SERVICE BUREAU, THE department of management and budget shall
10 ~~also~~ distribute ~~1 volume~~ THE PUBLICATION containing the
11 public and local acts of each session of the legislature to the
12 secretary of the senate and the clerk of the house of representa-
13 tives and 42 copies imprinted "senate" and ~~144~~ 120 copies
14 imprinted "house of representatives", to be used as desk copies,
15 to the secretary of the senate and the clerk of the house of rep-
16 resentatives, respectively. Members of the legislature shall
17 also receive a complete set of the public and local acts pub-
18 lished subsequent to the latest edition of the Michigan Compiled
19 Laws, for their personal property during each term for which they
20 are elected.

21 (2) ~~(3) The county clerk shall file a requisition for all~~
22 ~~copies of the public and local acts for the needs of the clerk's~~
23 ~~county, including county officers and townships, villages, and~~
24 ~~cities and their officers within the clerk's county, with the~~
25 ~~legislative service bureau by February 15, of each year.~~ There
26 may be published additional copies of the public and local acts
27 as the legislative service bureau considers necessary. ~~One~~

1 ~~hundred forty of those copies shall be deposited in the state~~
2 ~~library for use in the library and for exchanges, and the~~
3 ~~remaining~~ UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE SERVICE
4 BUREAU, THESE copies shall be deposited with the department of
5 management and budget for sale and future distribution.

6 (3) ~~(4)~~ The legislative service bureau may prepare, at not
7 less than the actual cost, reprints of laws upon particular
8 subjects for printing and distribution. The department of trea-
9 sury shall publish and distribute all pamphlets of the general
10 tax law or of all other laws relating to the revenues of the
11 state.

12 (4) AS USED IN THIS SECTION, "PUBLICATION" OR "PUBLISHED"
13 MEANS THE PRODUCTION AND DISSEMINATION OF INFORMATION IN PRINT,
14 MICROFILM, MICROFICHE, OR ELECTRONIC FORM.

15 Sec. 4. All the ~~volumes~~ COPIES of the state laws, legis-
16 lative manuals, and other ~~books~~ PUBLICATIONS, hereafter pub-
17 lished and distributed, and required to be retained in any
18 library, or passed over by any officer to his OR HER successor in
19 office, shall have marked ~~or branded on both covers thereof~~ the
20 words "State property."

21 Sec. 19. (1) All reports enumerated in this act which are
22 made annually shall be ~~printed~~ PUBLISHED annually. ~~and all~~

23 (2) ALL reports enumerated in this act which are made bien-
24 nially shall be ~~printed~~ PUBLISHED biennially.

25 Sec. 20. ~~There shall be printed~~ COPIES of all publica-
26 tions, reports, and documents as provided in this act ~~such~~
27 ~~additional copies~~ MAY BE PROVIDED for use and exchanges by the

1 state library as the state librarian may ~~in his discretion deem~~
 2 CONSIDER necessary for such purpose.

3 Sec. 30. (1) The legislative service bureau shall publish
 4 sufficient copies of the "Michigan Manual", to be distributed as
 5 provided in ~~subsections~~ SUBSECTION (2) ~~and (3)~~ and as
 6 directed by the legislative council.

7 ~~(2) The department of management and budget shall deliver +~~
 8 ~~copy of the manual to each of the following: senators and repre-~~
 9 ~~sentatives in congress from this state, United States circuit and~~
 10 ~~district court judges in this state, justices of the state~~
 11 ~~supreme court, judges of the court of appeals, and the judges of~~
 12 ~~the circuit, district, and probate courts, each district, graded~~
 13 ~~and city public school, and parochial school, each high school,~~
 14 ~~public, private, and parochial, in this state, each public~~
 15 ~~library other than school libraries, and archives that are in, or~~
 16 ~~a part of, public institutions in this state.~~

17 (2) ~~(3)~~ The department of management and budget shall
 18 ~~also~~ deliver the following number of copies to THE FOLLOWING
 19 PERSONS: ~~the governor, 5; lieutenant governor, 5; secretary of~~
 20 ~~state, 5; state treasurer, 5; auditor general, 5; attorney gener-~~
 21 ~~al, 5; superintendent of public instruction, 5; Michigan public~~
 22 ~~service commission, 1; state tax commission, 1; department of~~
 23 ~~natural resources, 1; financial institutions bureau, department~~
 24 ~~of commerce, 1; department of agriculture, 1; insurance bureau,~~
 25 ~~department of commerce, 1; department of labor, 1; corporation~~
 26 ~~and securities bureau, department of commerce, 1; members-~~

1 (A) MEMBERS of the senate, 1. ~~25; speaker of the house, 25;~~
2 ~~members~~

3 (B) MEMBERS of the house, 1. ~~except speaker, 25; secretary~~
4 ~~of the senate, 10; clerk of the house, 10; the adjutant general,~~
5 ~~+~~

6 (3) ~~(4)~~ The legislative service bureau shall determine a
7 price per ~~volume~~ PUBLICATION COPY not to exceed the cost of
8 preparation ~~, printing,~~ and distribution ~~,~~ and, UNLESS
9 DIRECTED OTHERWISE BY THE LEGISLATIVE SERVICE BUREAU, the depart-
10 ment of management and budget shall sell the ~~volumes~~ COPIES OF
11 THE PUBLICATION not distributed pursuant to ~~subsections~~
12 SUBSECTION (2). ~~and (3).~~

13 (4) ~~(5)~~ The Michigan manual fund is created in the state
14 treasury and shall be administered by the legislative council.
15 Any money received from the sale of the Michigan manual shall be
16 deposited with the state treasurer to the credit of the Michigan
17 manual fund and shall be used to pay the costs of preparing ~~,~~
18 ~~printing,~~ and distributing the Michigan manual.

19 (5) AS USED IN THIS SECTION, "PUBLICATION" OR "PUBLISHED"
20 MEANS THE PRODUCTION AND DISSEMINATION OF INFORMATION IN PRINT,
21 MICROFILM, MICROFICHE, OR ELECTRONIC FORM.

22 Sec. 37. (1) A sufficient number of ~~sets~~ PUBLICATIONS of
23 the Michigan compiled laws shall be ~~delivered~~ PROVIDED to the
24 department of management and budget for distribution as follows:

25 ~~(a) One set to the library of congress.~~

26 ~~(b) One set to the governor.~~

1 ~~(c) One set to the lieutenant governor.~~

2 (A) ~~(d) One set~~ PUBLICATION COPY to each member of the
3 legislature.

4 (B) ~~(e) Forty sets~~ PUBLICATION COPIES to the secretary
5 of the state senate for use as desk copies by the members of the
6 senate.

7 (C) ~~(f) One hundred fourteen sets~~ PUBLICATION COPIES to
8 the clerk of the state house of representatives for use as desk
9 copies by the members of the house of representatives.

10 ~~(g) One set to the secretary of the state senate.~~

11 ~~(h) One set to the clerk of the state house of~~
12 ~~representatives.~~

13 ~~(2) Additional set of the Michigan compiled laws, in the~~
14 ~~quantities specified in this subsection, shall be distributed by~~
15 ~~the department of management and budget, upon written request to~~
16 ~~the legislative service bureau from 1 or more of the following~~
17 ~~entities:~~

18 ~~(a) One set to each justice of the state supreme court.~~

19 ~~(b) One set to the clerk of the state supreme court.~~

20 ~~(c) One set to the reporter of the state supreme court.~~

21 ~~(d) Four sets to the court administrator's office.~~

22 ~~(e) One set to each judge of every court of this state.~~

23 ~~(f) One set to each prosecuting attorney.~~

24 ~~(g) One set to each county law library.~~

25 ~~(h) One set to the county board of commissioners of each~~
26 ~~county, which set shall be located in the county courthouse and~~
27 ~~available to the public.~~

1 ~~(i) One set to each state supported university or college.~~

2 ~~(j) One set to each private university or college of this~~

3 ~~state which is accredited by the north central association of~~
4 ~~colleges and secondary schools.~~

5 ~~(k) Two hundred fifty sets to the state library for use in~~

6 ~~the library and for exchanges.~~

7 ~~(l) A number of sets as determined by the legislative serv-~~

8 ~~ice bureau for use in the executive office of the governor, each~~

9 ~~state department, the legislative council and offices, councils,~~

10 ~~bureaus, and committees of the legislature.~~

11 (2) ~~(3) The~~ UNLESS DIRECTED OTHERWISE BY THE LEGISLATIVE

12 SERVICE BUREAU, THE department of management and budget may sell

13 ~~sets~~ COPIES of the Michigan compiled laws at a price determined

14 by the legislative service bureau.

15 (3) AS USED IN THIS SECTION, "PUBLICATION" OR "PUBLISHED"

16 MEANS THE PRODUCTION AND DISSEMINATION OF INFORMATION IN PRINT,

17 MICROFILM, MICROFICHE, OR ELECTRONIC FORM.